
 

Cabinet 

 

Title: Agenda  

Date: Tuesday 1 March 2016 

Time: 6.00 pm 

Venue: Council Chamber  
District Offices  

College Heath Road  
Mildenhall 

Membership: Leader James Waters 

 Deputy Leader Robin Millar 

 Councillor Portfolio 

 David Bowman Operations 

 Stephen Edwards Resources and Performance 
 Andy Drummond Leisure and Culture 

 Robin Millar Families and Communities 
 James Waters Planning and Growth 
   

Interests – 
Declaration and 

Restriction on 
Participation: 

Members are reminded of their responsibility to declare any 
disclosable pecuniary interest not entered in the Authority's 

register or local non pecuniary interest which they have in any 
item of business on the agenda (subject to the exception for 

sensitive information) and to leave the meeting prior to 
discussion and voting on an item in which they have a 
disclosable pecuniary interest. 

 

Quorum: Three Members 

Committee 
administrator: 

Sharon Turner 
Democratic Services Officer 

Tel: 01638 719237 
Email: sharon.turner@westsuffolk.gov.uk 

 

 

 

Public Document Pack



 

 

Public Information 
 

Venue: District Offices 

College Heath Road 

Mildenhall  

Suffolk, IP28 7EY 

Tel: 01638 719000 

Email: democratic.services@ 

westsuffolk.gov.uk  

Web: www.westsuffolk.gov.uk 

Access to 

agenda and 

reports before 

the meeting: 

Copies of the agenda and reports are open for public inspection 

at the above address at least five clear days before the 

meeting. They are also available to view on our website. 

 

Attendance at 

meetings: 

The District Council actively welcomes members of the public 

and the press to attend its meetings and holds as many of its 

meetings as possible in public. 

Public 

speaking: 

Members of the public who live or work in the District are 

invited to put one question or statement of not more than three 

minutes duration relating to items to be discussed in Part 1 of 

the agenda only.  If a question is asked and answered within 

three minutes, the person who asked the question may ask a 

supplementary question that arises from the reply. 

A person who wishes to speak must register at least 15 minutes 

before the time the meeting is scheduled to start. 

There is an overall time limit of 15 minutes for public speaking, 

which may be extended at the Chairman’s discretion. 

Disabled 

access: 

The public gallery is on the first floor and is accessible via 

stairs. There is not a lift but disabled seating is available at the 

back of the Council Chamber on the ground floor. Please see 

the Committee Administrator who will be able to help you. 

Induction 

loop: 

An Induction loop operates to enhance sound for anyone 

wearing a hearing aid or using a transmitter.   

Recording of 

meetings: 

The Council may record this meeting and permits members of 

the public and media to record or broadcast it as well (when the 

media and public are not lawfully excluded). 

 

Any member of the public who attends a meeting and objects to 

being filmed should advise the Committee Administrator who 

will instruct that they are not included in the filming. 

 

 
 

 

 

 
 



 
 

  Page No 
 

 Agenda 
 

 

 Procedural Matters 
 

 

1.   Apologies for Absence  

 

 

 Part 1 - Public 
 

 

2.   Open Forum  

 At each Cabinet meeting, up to 15 minutes shall be allocated for 
questions from and discussion with, non-Cabinet members.  
Members wishing to speak during this session should if possible, 

give notice in advance.  Who speaks and for how long will be at 
the complete discretion of the person presiding. 
 

 

3.   Public Participation  

 Members of the public who live or work in the District are invited 

to put one question/statement of not more than three minutes 
duration relating to items to be discussed in Part 1 of the agenda 
only.  If a question is asked and answered within three minutes, 

the person who asked the question may ask a supplementary 
question that arises from the reply. 

 
A person who wishes to speak must register at least 15 minutes 

before the time the meeting is scheduled to start. 
 
There is an overall time limit of 15 minutes for public speaking, 

which may be extended at the Chairman’s discretion. 
 

 

4.   Recommendations of the Local Plan Working Group:        

15 February 2016 

1 - 8 

 Report No: CAB/FH/16/011  

  Responses to Consultation and Engagement on the Core 
Strategy Single Issue Review (SIR), Site Allocations Local Plan 
(SALP) and Draft Infrastructure Delivery Plan (IDP) 

 
 Core Strategy Single Issue Review (SIR) Preferred Option – 

(Regulation 18) Consultation Document 
 

Portfolio Holder: James Waters 

Chairman of the Local Plan Working Group: Rona Burt 

Lead Officer: Marie Smith 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 

  Page No 
 

5.   Recommendations of the Local Plan Working Group:        
18 February 2016 

9 - 16 

 Report No: CAB/FH/16/012  

  Site Allocations Preferred Options – (Regulation 18) 
Consultation Document 

 
Portfolio Holder: James Waters   

Chairman of the Local Plan Working Group: Rona Burt 

Lead Officer: Marie Smith 

 

 



CAB/FH/16/011 

Cabinet  

 
Title of Report: Recommendations of the 

Local Plan Working Group:   
15 February 2016 

Report No: CAB/FH/16/011 
 

Report to and date: Cabinet 1 March 2016 

Portfolio holder: James Waters 

Portfolio Holder for Planning and Growth 
Tel: 07771 621038 
Email: james.waters@forest-heath.gov.uk 

Chairman of the 
Working Group: 

Rona Burt 
Local Plan Working Group 

Tel: 01638 712309 
Email: rona.burt@forest-heath.gov.uk 

Lead officer: Marie Smith 
Strategic Planning Manager 

Tel: 01638 719260 
Email: marie.smith@westsuffolk.gov.uk 

Purpose of report: On 15 February 2016, the Local Plan Working Group 
considered the following substantive items of business: 
 

(1) Responses to consultation and engagement on 
the Core Strategy Single Issue Review (SIR), 

Site Allocations Local Plan (SALP) and Draft 
Infrastructure Delivery Plan (IDP). 

 

(2) Core Strategy Single Issue Review (SIR) 
Preferred Option – (Regulation 18) Consultation 

Document. 

Recommendation: It is RECOMMENDED that: 

 
(1) Responses to consultation and engagement 

on the Core Strategy Single Issue Review 

(SIR), Site Allocations Local Plan (SALP) 
and Draft Infrastructure Delivery Plan 

(IDP) 
 

That the responses, comments and actions 
as set out in Working Papers 1, 2 and 3 of 
Report No LOP/FH/16/004 be endorsed. 

 

Page 1

Agenda Item 4

mailto:james.waters@forest-heath.gov.uk
mailto:rona.burt@forest-heath.gov.uk
mailto:marie.smith@westsuffolk.gov.uk


CAB/FH/16/011 

(2) Core Strategy Single Issue Review (SIR) 

Preferred Option – (Regulation 18) 
Consultation Document 

 
(a) That the Core Strategy Single Issue 

Review (CS SIR) Preferred Option 

document (as set out in Working 
Paper 1 to Report No 

LOP/FH/16/005) and accompanying 
Strategic Environmental Assessment 
(SEA)/Sustainability Appraisal (SA), 

together with supporting documents, 
be approved for consultation, subject 

to additional text being included to 
provide further clarity and context for 
Newmarket in relation to Option 1 

(the Council’s preferred option) and 
Option 2 (the Council’s non-preferred 

option). 
 

(b) The Head of Planning and Growth, in 

consultation with the Portfolio Holder 
for Planning and Growth, be 

authorised to make any minor 
typographical, factual, spelling and 
grammatical changes to the 

document, provided that it does not 
materially affect the substance or 

meaning. 

Key Decision: 
 
(Check the appropriate 
box and delete all those 
that do not apply.) 

Is this a Key Decision and, if so, under which 

definition? 
Yes, it is a Key Decision - ☐ 

No, it is not a Key Decision - ☒ 

 

The decisions made as a result of this report will usually be published within 

48 hours and cannot be actioned until five clear working days of the 
publication of the decision have elapsed. This item is included on the 

Decisions Plan. 

Consultation:  See Reports: LOP/FH/16/004 and 005 

Alternative option(s):  See Reports: LOP/FH/16/004 and 005 

Implications:  

Are there any financial implications? 
If yes, please give details 

See Reports: LOP/FH/16/004 and 005 

Are there any staffing implications? 
If yes, please give details 

See Reports: LOP/FH/16/004 and 005 

Are there any ICT implications? If 
yes, please give details 

See Reports: LOP/FH/16/004 and 005 

Are there any legal and/or policy 
implications? If yes, please give 

details 

See Reports: LOP/FH/16/004 and 005 

Page 2



CAB/FH/16/011 

Are there any equality implications? 

If yes, please give details 
 

 

See Reports: LOP/FH/16/004 and 005 

Risk/opportunity assessment: (potential hazards or opportunities affecting 
corporate, service or project objectives) 

Risk area Inherent level of 

risk (before 

controls) 

Controls Residual risk (after 

controls) 

See Reports: LOP/FH/16/004 and 005   

Ward(s) affected: All Wards 

Background papers: 
(all background papers are to be 

published on the website and a link 
included) 

Local Plan Working Group:15 February 
2016 

 Report No LOP/FH/16/004 & 
Working Paper 1;Working Paper 2; 
Working Paper 3 

 
 Report No LOP/FH/16/005 & 

Working Paper 1 

Documents attached: None 
 

 
  

Page 3

https://democracy.westsuffolk.gov.uk/documents/s12644/LOP.FH.16.004%20Responses%20to%20Consultation%20and%20Engagement%20on%20the%20CS%20SIR%20and%20SALP.pdf
https://democracy.westsuffolk.gov.uk/documents/s12645/LOP.FH.16.004%20Working%20Paper%201%20-%20Forest%20Heath%20Core%20Strategy%20Policy%20CS7%20Single%20Issue%20Review%20-%20Issues%20a.pdf
https://democracy.westsuffolk.gov.uk/documents/s12646/LOP.FH.16.004%20Working%20Paper%202%20-%20Forest%20Heath%20Site%20Allocations%20Local%20Plan%20-%20Further%20Issues%20and%20Option.pdf
https://democracy.westsuffolk.gov.uk/documents/s12647/LOP.FH.16.004%20Working%20Paper%203%20-%20Infrastructure%20Delivery%20Plan%20to%202031%20-%20Consultation%20Draft%202015.pdf
https://democracy.westsuffolk.gov.uk/documents/s12648/LOP.FH.16.005%20Core%20Strategy%20SIR%20Preferred%20Option%20-%20Regulation%2018%20Consultation%20Document.pdf
https://democracy.westsuffolk.gov.uk/documents/s12649/LOP.FH.16.005%20Working%20Paper%201%20-%20SIR%20Review%20of%20Core%20Strategy%20Policy%20CS7%20Overall%20Housing%20Provision%20and.pdf


CAB/FH/16/011 

 Key issues and reasons for recommendation(s) 

 
1. Responses to consultation and engagement on the Core Strategy 

Single Issue Review (SIR), Site Allocations Local Plan (SALP) and 

Draft Infrastructure Delivery Plan (IDP) (Report No: LOP/FH/16/004) 
 

1.1. 
 

The Core Strategy Single Issue Review (CS SIR) revisits the quashed parts of 
the 2010 Core Strategy as well as reassessing overall housing need/numbers 
to ensure compliance with the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF).  An 

'Issues and Options' (Regulation 18) consultation was completed on the Core 
Strategy SIR in July to September 2012, with a second Issues and Options 

(Regulation 18) consultation taking place between August and October 2015. 
 

1.2 

 

An Issues and Options draft of the Site Allocations Local Plan (SALP) was 

prepared but did not proceed to consultation in 2013.  A Further Issues and 
Options (Regulation 18) draft was completed, and consultation took place 

concurrently with the SIR between August and October 2015. 
 

1.3 A first draft of an Infrastructure Development Plan (IDP) was prepared to 

accompany the Issues and Options consultation drafts of both the Single Issue 
Review (SIR) of Core Strategy Policy CS7 – Overall Housing Provision and 

Distribution, and the Site Allocations Local Plans.  The IDP will be updated and 
refined as the local plan documents progress through the planning process (to 
the Preferred Options and Submission draft stages).  Consultation took place 

on this first draft of the IDP concurrently with the regulation 18 consultations 
on the SIR and SALP between August and October 2015. 

 
1.4 Paragraph 155 of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) advises: 

 
 “Early and meaningful engagement and collaboration with 

neighbourhoods, local organisations and businesses is essential. A wide 

section of the community should be proactively engaged, so that Local 
Plans, as far as possible, reflect a collective vision and a set of agreed 

priorities for the sustainable development of the area, including those 
contained in any neighbourhood plans that have been made.” 

 

  The accompanying guidance in the National Planning Practice Guidance 
(NPPG) notes that “Section 18 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase 

Act 2004 requires local planning authorities to produce a Statement of 
Community Involvement, which should explain how they will engage local 
communities and other interested parties in producing their Local Plan 

and determining planning applications.”  
 

1.5 The Forest Heath and St Edmundsbury Statement of Community Involvement 
(SCI) was adopted in February 2014.  The SCI contains a statement of intent 
to engage with our communities – part of a wider commitment made by the 

councils to create and maintain effective working relationships with all sectors 
of the community.  The document sets out the key stages in preparing a local 

plan document, and the protocols that all local authorities must follow.  The 
SCI states the councils’ intention to go well beyond the minimum requirements 
for consultation.  The ‘Issues and Options’ stage concludes, “we must take into 

account any representations made to us at this ‘Issues and Options’ stage.” 
 

Page 4

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2004/5/section/18
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2004/5/section/18


CAB/FH/16/011 

1.6 Responses to all three documents have been received from statutory 

consultees, such as the Environment Agency, Historic England, Natural England 
etc., town and parish councils, interest groups, and individual residents and 
landowners.  

 
1.7 There were a total of 364 representations (of support, objection, or comments) 

from 98 respondents to the Core Strategy Single Issue Review of CS7; 893 
representations on the Site Allocations Local Plan Further Issues and Options 
document from 133 respondents; 11 people responded to the Draft 

Infrastructure Delivery Plan submitting 46 representations. 
 

1.8 Working Papers 1, 2 and 3 of Report No LOP/FH/16/004 set out summaries of 
all the responses received to the SIR, SALP and IDP documents that were the 
subject of an eight week consultation period between August and October 

2015, together with Officer responses and comments and/or actions on each. 
 

1.9 Consultation responses to the Sustainability Appraisal and the Habitats 
Regulations Assessment will be considered by the Council’s Consultants 
preparing these documents and will be addressed as part of the next iteration 

of each of these documents.  
 

1.10 Following approval by Cabinet on 1 March 2016, of the final CS SIR and SALP 
consultation documents, the design and printing of the documents will take a 
further few weeks and, therefore, the consultation is planned to be held from 4 

April 2016 until 8 June 2016.  
 

1.11 Comments received during this next consultation will be considered and 
brought back to the Local Plan Working Group before being fed into the final 

consultations for both the Site Allocations and Core Strategy Single Issue 
Review in late summer/autumn 2016. Submission of the documents for 
independent examination will follow in December 2016.  

 
 Comments from the Local Plan Working Group 

 
1.12 The Working Group considered the responses, comments and actions as set 

out in Working Papers 1, 2 3 of the report and recommended that these be 

endorsed. 
 

2. 
 

Core Strategy Single Issue Review (SIR) Preferred Option – 
(Regulation 18) Consultation Document (Report No: LOP/FH/16/005) 
 

2.1 The Core Strategy Single Issue Review (CS SIR) revisits the quashed parts of 
the 2010 Core Strategy as well as reassessing overall housing need/numbers 

to ensure compliance with the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF). 
 

2.2 

 

An 'Issues and Options' (Regulation 18) consultation was completed on the 

Core Strategy SIR in July to September 2012, with a second Issues and 
Options (Regulation 18) consultation taking place between August and October 

2015.  
 

2.3 

 

A third Issues and Options consultation is scheduled to take place between 4 

April 2016 and 8 June 2016, and it is the preferred option consultation draft of 
the Core Strategy SIR, attached as Working Paper 1 to Report No 

Page 5



CAB/FH/16/011 

LOP/FH/16/005.   

 
2.4 
 

Report No LOP/FH/16/002  and Working Paper 1 were presented to the Local 
Plan Working Group on 19 January 2016, setting out the Sustainability 

Appraisal work undertaken during the development of the refined housing 
distribution options. 

   
2.5 Three potential options were proposed in this report, but it was the view of 

Officers and the consultants appointed to undertake the Sustainability 

Appraisal work, that in order to progress the CS SIR and to ensure a more 
engaging consultation, a smaller number of options for consultation should be 

included in the next CS SIR document (one to be indicated as the Council’s 
preferred option and one as an alternative option).  
 

2.6 The report stated it was likely that Option 1 (Higher growth at Mildenhall and 
Red Lodge and Primary Villages, enabling lower growth at Newmarket) would 

be presented as the Council’s final preferred Option, a decision which is 
reinforced by this Option ranking mostly highly in terms of performance 
against the SA objectives.  Option 2 (Higher growth at Newmarket, enabling 

lower growth at Mildenhall, Red Lodge and Primary Villages) would be 
presented as an alternative option, but will not be preferred.  

 
2.7 Working Paper 1 to Report No LOP/FH/16/005 is the third ‘Issues and Options’ 

(Regulation 18) CS SIR consultation document. This document considers one 

option for the overall level of housing to be provided in the District from 2011 
to 2031 and two reasonable options (one of which is the Council’s preferred 

Option) for its distribution between towns and villages (as outlined in 
paragraph 2.6 above).  

 
2.8 The purpose of the consultation document is to stimulate further debate on 

housing quantum and the most appropriate way to distribute the housing need 

throughout the district. The document asks questions and invites comments 
from both the public and statutory stakeholders. The Council is still evidence 

gathering at this stage and is not making a final decision on the distribution of 
housing, but is giving an indication of its preferred strategy. 
 

2.9 A Sustainability Appraisal (SA) is a tool for appraising policies to ensure they 
reflect sustainable development objectives. Sustainability Appraisals are 

required for all local development documents. Strategic Environmental 
Assessment (SEA) is a procedure (set out in the Environmental Assessment of 
Plans and Programmes Regulations 2004) which requires the formal 

environmental assessment of certain plans and programmes which are likely to 
have significant effects on the environment.   

 
2.10 Consultants have been appointed to undertake the full SA and SEA work in 

relation to the next consultation draft of the SIR document.  A full report 

setting out the findings of the SA and SEA and the proposed CS SIR Regulation 
18 consultation will accompany the document for consultation in April 2016. 

 
2.11 Following consideration by the Local Plan Working Group, the final CS SIR 

consultation document will be presented to Cabinet for approval on 1 March 

2016.  The design and printing of the documents will take a further few weeks, 
therefore, the consultation is planned to run from 4 April 2016 until 8 June 

Page 6

https://democracy.westsuffolk.gov.uk/documents/s12170/CAB.FH.16.002%20Core%20Strategy%20SIR%20-%20Sustainability%20Appraisal%20of%20Housing%20Distribution%20Options.pdf
https://democracy.westsuffolk.gov.uk/documents/s12171/CAB.FH.16.002%20Working%20Paper%201%20-%20Sustainability%20Appraisal%20of%20the%20Forest%20Heath%20Core%20Strategy%20Single%20Is.pdf


CAB/FH/16/011 

2016. 

 
2.12 Comments received during this next consultation will be considered and 

brought back to the Local Plan Working Group before being fed into the final 

consultations for both the Site Allocations and Core Strategy Single Issue 
Review in late Summer/Autumn 2016. Submission of the documents for 

independent examination will follow in December 2016. 
 

 Comments from the Local Plan Working Group 

 
2.13 The Working Group considered the CS SIR consultation document in detail and 

proposed that the document be approved for consultation, subject to additional 
text being included within the document to provide further clarity and context 
for Newmarket in relation to Option 1 (the Council’s preferred option) and 

Option 2 (the Council’s non-preferred option). 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



CAB/FH/16/012 

Cabinet  

 
Title of Report: Recommendations of the 

Local Plan Working Group:   
18 February 2016 

Report No: CAB/FH/16/012 
 

Report to and date: Cabinet 1 March 2016 

Portfolio holder: James Waters 

Portfolio Holder for Planning and Growth 
Tel: 07771 621038 
Email: james.waters@forest-heath.gov.uk 

Chairman of the 
Working Group: 

Rona Burt 
Local Plan Working Group 

Tel: 01638 712309 
Email: rona.burt@forest-heath.gov.uk 

Lead officer: Marie Smith 
Strategic Planning Manager 

Tel: 01638 719260 
Email: marie.smith@westsuffolk.gov.uk 

Purpose of report: On 18 February 2016, the Local Plan Working Group 
considered the following substantive item of business: 
 

(1) Site Allocations Preferred Options – (Regulation 
18) Consultation Document 

Recommendation: It is RECOMMENDED that: 
 

(1) Progress on the Site Allocations Local Plan 
(SALP) be endorsed. 
 

(2) The Site Allocations Preferred Options 
document, as set out in Working Papers 1 

and 2 to Report No LOP/FH/16/006 and 
accompanying Strategic Environmental 
Assessment (SEA)/Sustainability Appraisal 

(SA), together with supporting documents, 
be approved for consultation, subject to the 

following amendment: 
 

(i) Newmarket – Site N1(b): Land at Black 
Bear Lane and Rowley Drive Junction 
(formerly N/11)  

 Paragraph 7.18 and Site (b) of Policy 

Page 9

Agenda Item 5

mailto:james.waters@forest-heath.gov.uk
mailto:rona.burt@forest-heath.gov.uk
mailto:marie.smith@westsuffolk.gov.uk


CAB/FH/16/012 

N1: Housing in Newmarket, of the 

SALP document, be amended to 
include further references to the 

retention of a horse racing related use 
on that site. 

 

(2) The Head of Planning and Growth, in 
consultation with the Portfolio Holder for 

Planning and Growth, be authorised to 
make any minor typographical, factual, 
spelling and grammatical changes to the 

document, provided that it does not 
materially affect the substance or meaning. 

Key Decision: 
 
(Check the appropriate 
box and delete all those 

that do not apply.) 

Is this a Key Decision and, if so, under which 
definition? 

Yes, it is a Key Decision - ☐ 

No, it is not a Key Decision - ☒ 

 

The decisions made as a result of this report will usually be published within 
48 hours and cannot be actioned until five clear working days of the 

publication of the decision have elapsed. This item is included on the 
Decisions Plan. 

Consultation: See Report LOP/FH/16/006 

Alternative option(s): See Report LOP/FH/16/006 

Implications:  

Are there any financial implications? 

If yes, please give details 

See Report LOP/FH/16/006 

Are there any staffing implications? 

If yes, please give details 

See Report LOP/FH/16/006 

Are there any ICT implications? If 

yes, please give details 

See Report LOP/FH/16/006 

Are there any legal and/or policy 

implications? If yes, please give 
details 

See Report LOP/FH/16/006 

Are there any equality implications? 
If yes, please give details 

See Report LOP/FH/16/006 

Risk/opportunity assessment: (potential hazards or opportunities affecting 
corporate, service or project objectives) 

Risk area Inherent level of 

risk (before 

controls) 

Controls Residual risk (after 

controls) 

See Report LOP/FH/16/006   

Ward(s) affected: All Wards 

Background papers: 

(all background papers are to be 
published on the website and a link 

included) 

Local Plan Working Group: 18 

February 2016 
 Report No LOP/FH/16/006;  

Working Paper 1; Working Paper 2 
 

Documents attached: None 
 

 

  

Page 10

https://democracy.westsuffolk.gov.uk/documents/s12694/LOP.FH.16.006%20Site%20Allocations%20Preferred%20Options%20-%20Regulation%2018%20Consultation%20Document.pdf
https://democracy.westsuffolk.gov.uk/documents/s12695/LOP.FH.16.006%20Site%20Allocations%20Preferred%20Options%20-%20Working%20Paper%201%20-%20Consultation%20Document.pdf
https://democracy.westsuffolk.gov.uk/documents/s12696/LOP.FH.16.006%20Site%20Allocations%20Preferred%20Options%20-%20Working%20Paper%202%20-%20Policies%20Map.pdf


CAB/FH/16/012 

 Key issues and reasons for recommendation(s) 

 
1. Site Allocations Preferred Options – (Regulation 18) Consultation 

Document (Report No: LOP/FH/16/006) 

 
1.1. 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
1.2 

 
 

 
 
 

 
1.3 

 
 
 

 
 

1.4 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
1.5 
 

 
 

 
1.6 
 

 
 

 

The Forest Heath Core Strategy was adopted in May 2010. Following a 

successful High Court Challenge in May 2011, parts of Policy CS7 
detailing how the overall housing need would be distributed between the 
settlements  over a 20 year period (to 2031) were quashed (removed 

from the Strategy). Consequential amendments were also made to 
policies CS1 (Spatial Strategy) and CS13 (Infrastructure and Developer 

Contributions).  
 
Since then, the Council has been revisiting the quashed parts of the Core 

Strategy (known as the Single Issue Review) to determine the overall 
housing numbers and distribution, as well as developing a Site 

Allocations Local Plan (SALP) to identify which sites should be developed, 
in order to achieve the vision and objectives of the Core Strategy and 
meet the outcomes of the Single Issue Review.  

 
Consultation took place between August and October 2015 on an Issues 

and Options (Regulation 18) Site Allocations Local Plan. The purpose of 
the document was to stimulate debate on the most appropriate way to 
distribute housing need throughout the district, as well as considering 

sites for employment, community and leisure uses.  
 

The consultation responses received during the 2015 consultation, and 
officer responses to them, were considered at the Local Plan Working 

Group meeting on 15 February 2016. All of the responses are available to 
view online at the Council’s public consultation website at 
http://westsuffolk.jdi-consult.net/localplan/.  The consultation responses, 

and other evidence, have been used to develop the council’s preferred 
site options and the next SALP document for consultation.  

 
Working Paper 1 to Report No LOP/FH/16/006 is the Site Allocations Local 
Plan Preferred Options document. It supersedes and updates the 2015 

consultation document and sets out the Council’s preferred sites for 
housing, employment and other uses to 2031.  

 
The document asks questions and invites comments from both the public 
and statutory stakeholders. The Council is still evidence gathering at this 

stage and is not making a final decision on sites, but is giving an 
indication of its preferred strategy.  

1.7 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

A Sustainability Appraisal (SA) is a tool for appraising policies to ensure 
they reflect sustainable development objectives. Sustainability Appraisals 

are required for all local development documents. Strategic 
Environmental Assessment (SEA) is a procedure (set out in the 

Environmental Assessment of Plans and Programmes Regulations 2004) 
which requires the formal environmental assessment of certain plans and 
programmes which are likely to have significant effects on the 

environment.   
 

Page 11

http://westsuffolk.jdi-consult.net/localplan/


CAB/FH/16/012 

1.8 Consultants have been appointed to undertake the full SA and SEA work 

in relation to the next consultation draft of the SALP document.  A full 
report setting out the findings of the SA and SEA and the proposed SALP 
Regulation 18 consultation will accompany the document for consultation 

in April 2016. 
 

1.9 
 
 

 
 

 
1.10 
 

 
 

 
1.11 

The Council are planning for long term growth to give certainty in how 
and where settlements will grow within the District. This will ensure that 
service providers can plan and deliver the necessary infrastructure to 

enable the planned growth to happen when it is required. This would 
include such facilities as roads, sewers and water infrastructure.  

 
A draft Infrastructure Delivery Plan (IDP) accompanied the 2015 SALP 
consultation document. Since then, further work with infrastructure 

providers has taken place which has helped inform the selection of 
preferred sites in the SALP document.  

 
A revised IDP will accompany the 2016 SALP Preferred Options document 
to further set out the infrastructure requirements to support 

development. Comments can also be made on this next iteration of the 
draft IDP.   

 
1.12 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
1.13 

The Policies Map (formerly known as the Proposals Map) illustrates 
particular land uses throughout the district including areas for protection, 

such as Special Protection Areas and conservation areas, as well as 
employment and residential activities. It also identifies key sites for 

development. The Policies Map encompasses all Local Plan documents 
and so far relates to policies in the Core Strategy (2010) and the Joint 

Development Management Policies document (2015). 
 
A draft updated Policies Map has been produced for consultation 

alongside the 2016 SALP document to identify the preferred sites. This 
allows the preferred sites to be viewed alongside other already adopted 

policies and constraints to assist when making consultation comments.   
  

1.14 

 
 

 
 
1.15 

 
 

 
 
 

1.16 
 

 
 

Following approval by Cabinet on 1 March 2016 of the final SALP 

document, the design and printing of the documents will take several 
weeks and, therefore, the consultation is planned to be held from 4 April 

2016 until 8 June 2016.  
 
Comments received during this next consultation will be considered and 

brought back to the Local Plan Working Group, before being fed into the 
final consultation for the Site Allocations Local Plan in late 

Summer/Autumn 2016. Submission of the documents for independent 
examination will follow in December 2016.  
 

The change in consultation date for the next consultation has meant an 
update to the Local Development Scheme (timetable for plan 

preparation) is required, which will be published on the Council’s website 
prior to the start of the next consultation in April 2016.  

 

 
 

 

 
 

Page 12



CAB/FH/16/012 

 Comments from the Local Plan Working Group 

 
1.17 

 
The Working Group considered the Site Allocations Local Plan (SALP) in 
detail and made the following substantive comments: 

 
(a) Brandon – Site B1(a): Land at Fengate Drove (formerly 

B/01) 
1.17.1  Reference was made to potential severe contamination 

issues pertaining to this site which may affect the ability 

to develop the site.  Officers stated that they had not 
received indications that this site was going to stall, but 

confirmed that they would liaise with Development 
Management to ascertain if any contamination issues had 
been identified. 

 
(b) Newmarket – Site N1(b): Land at Black Bear Lane and 

Rowley Drive Junction 
 

1.17.2  Some Members expressed strong concerns regarding 

residential development being proposed for this site.  This 
site had previously been overturned, at appeal, for 

residential development.  It was considered that if this 
site was allocated for residential development, then this 
would seriously undermine the Council’s Horse Racing 

Policies and may set a precedent for the allocating of 
residential development on other similar paddock land 

within the Town.  Therefore, it was proposed that the 
allocation of residential development on this site should 

be re-considered. 
 

1.17.3  Officers explained that this site had been allocated for 

mixed use, which did not currently contain capacity for 
residential development.  As this was a stalled site, it was 

considered that the best way to advance any 
development, was to undertake a specific design brief for 
that site to address the issues of bringing the listed 

buildings ‘at risk’ on that site back into use.  This could 
include a reasonable amount of enabling development, 

connected with equine use. A feasibility study would be 
undertaken to determine the best use for this site, with 
the minimum amount of development required to also be 

able to bring the current buildings on that site back into 
use. 

 
1.17.4 Officers explained that Policy DM49 (Re-Development of 

Existing Sites Relating to the Horse Racing Industry) of 

the Joint Development Management Policies Document 
2015, allowed change of use for buildings related to the 

horse racing industry and also allowed the allocation of 
sites in the SALP to come out of horseracing use. 

 

1.17.5  Officers also reassured Members that the Council’s Horse 
Racing Policies remained robust in relation to the 

Page 13



CAB/FH/16/012 

development of land related to horse racing use and that 

any development unrelated to that use would continue to 
be recommended for refusal.  However, there were 
exceptions if sites had been allocated within the SALP and 

then which would become outside of the generic policies. 
 

1.17.6  However, taking these concerns into account, Officers 
proposed that in relation to paragraph 7.18 and Site (b) 
of Policy N1: Housing in Newmarket, that the SALP 

document be amended to include further references to the 
retention of a horse racing related use on that site.  

 
 (c) Newmarket – Site N1(a): Land at Brickfield Stud, Exning 

Road 

 
1.17.7  Following on from the discussion in (b) above, similar 

concerns were also raised in relation to this site, 
particularly as it was paddock land associated with a stud.  
Members also proposed that this particular site should not 

be allocated for residential development. 
 

1.17.8  Officers explained that this site was the least constrained 
site within horse racing use, given the shortage of 
available sites within Newmarket which could be identified 

for development.  This site was separated from the 
majority of the Stud by Exning Road and by keeping the 

development to the south of the Stud buildings and east 
of Exning Road, the impact on the important green gap 

between Exning and Newmarket and loss of land in equine 
use was minimised. 

 

(d) West Row  
1.17.9 Reference was made to the land which had been identified 

within the SALP for a new school and explained that this 
needed to be provided as soon as was possible, as the 
current Primary School was working at its capacity and 

there were also significant problems in that area with cars 
parking on the road and causing congestion problems with 

through traffic. 
 

1.17.10  Reference was also made to the water supply within the 

village, particularly in relation to the three inch water 
main which ran through the village and stated that this 

main did not have the capacity to cope with the additional 
development proposed and would need to be upgraded.  

 

1.17.11 Officers confirmed that in relation to the issues raised in   
1.17.9 and 1.17.10 above, these had been noted and 

would addressed within the Infrastructure Delivery Plan 
(IDP), to ensure that these were delivered at the 
appropriate time. 

 
 

Page 14



CAB/FH/16/012 

(e) Infrastructure Provision 

1.17.12 In relation to the provision of infrastructure generally 
within the District (eg education provision; capacity of 
waste water systems), Members stated that it was vitally 

important to ensure that the relevant partners were 
capable of delivering these important infrastructure 

requirements at the appropriate time.  Officers confirmed 
that the Council would continue to work with the 
infrastructure providers and with its partners in preparing 

its IDP to support the delivery of the SALP, to ensure that 
the required infrastructure was provided. 

 
 

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Recommendations of the Local Plan Working Group: 15 February 2016
	5 Recommendations of the Local Plan Working Group: 18 February 2016

